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Location: On SR982, approximately 3 miles North of Interstate 76, Mammoth, Mt,
Pleasant Township, Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania

Date of Construction: 1885

Builder: unknown

Present Owner: unknown

Present Use: reclaimed

Significance: One of the largest mining and coking operations in the Connellsville Coke

Region, Mammoth No, 1 & 2 had over 500 coke ovens at peak operating
periods. Mammoth was the scene of one of the worst mining disasters of the
19th century, when 116 miners were killed in a gas explosicn and its
aftermath.

Project Information: In February, 1987, the Historic American Engineering Record (HAER) and
the Historic American Buildings Survey (HABS) began a multi-year historical
and architectural documentation project in southwestern Pennsylvania,
Carried out in conjunction with America’s Industrial Heritage Project
(AIHP), HAER undertook a comprehensive inventory of Westmoreland
County to identify the region’s surviving historic engineering works and
industrial resources.
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DESCRIPTION: The Mammoth mines included Mammoth No. 2, a slope-entry mine, located near tbe town,
and Mammotb No. 1, a shaft-entry mine, located to the west, along a trihutary to Sewickley Creek. Each of
these mines contained a coke works. Only a few remnants of this once-large mining and coking operation
stands. The only extant mine structure is the former hoiler house and lamp bouse building. Built in tbe 1890s,
this one-story brick structure is L-sbaped and contains a riveted steel roof truss, common-bond red-hrick walls,
a gable roof, and a stone foundation. It serves as the Mount Pleasant Township office. Until 1993, a large part
of Mammoth No. 1 coke works survived; however, this land was recently reclaimed and all of the ovens were
demolished. Notbing survives from the Mammoth No. 2 coke works.

North of Mamimoth, in a county park, six bechive coke ovens have been rebuilt near the site of the Magee Coke
Works. An interpretive area, completed by the Westmoreland County Parks system, now surrounds the restored
coke ovens. Some company-built houses once stood near here in an unincorporated town known by local
residents as Peanut.

The town of Mammoth straddles Route 982, east of the slope and shaft mines. A few post-1940s houses are
located along Route 982 to the north, To the soutb on this route stand about twenty-five coal company-built
residences. These were originally douhle houses hut most have been converted into single-family houses. They
are two-story buildings with saltbox roofs and stone foundations, Originally they had a single brick chimney
located in the middle of the huilding, and clapboard siding. Most of the chimneys have been removed and the
siding on virtually all of the huildings has been replaced with aluminum or asphalt. The main facades are
parallel to the ridge of the roof and the fronts of the houses are extremely close to the road, a result of the
widening of Route 982.

The company-built houses on Poker Road, the westernmost street in Mammoth, are the most intact within the
town. A single row of fen double houses stands alongside the road as it rises to the south. These two-story
buildings are of the standard double-house construction: wood frame, clapboard siding (though most of the
original siding has been replaced with asphaltic or aluminum siding), gable roofs, main entrances parallel to the
gable ridge, two brick chimneys, stone foundations, and full-length froat porches (though many of these have
been altered). Bosses’Row, on tbe northem half of Poker Road, contains six large single-family houses. These
two-and-a-half-story wood-frame huildings are T-shaped with intersecting gahle roofs. Each has two brick
chimneys, full-dength front porcbes with decorative brackets, and rubble stone foundations. The siding was
originally clapboard; however, a number of houses now have asphaltic siding.

The town’s former grade school is a one-story building with stretcher-bond yellow-brick walls and & hipped
roof, It no longer serves as a school and has been remodeled for commercial use., A Protestant church on Poker
Road stands between the workers’ houses and managers’ row. it is a small wood-frame building with clapboard
siding, a gable roof, and a modest bell tower. The company store stood along Route 982 and burned a number
of years ago. '

HISTORY: In 1879 Colonel J. W, Moore of Greensburg purchased 2,000 acres of coal property in northern
Mount Pleasant Township, and in 1885 his company opened the slope-entry Mammoth mine, exploiting the 84"-
to 90"-thick Pittshurgh coal seam. The following year a second mine, containing a shaft entry, was sunk west of
the slope mine. A coke works was built at each of the mines. By 1886 Moore’s Mammoth mines employed 176
men and boys, and both coke works employed 110 men and boys. The two coke works had 377 beehive coke
ovens and produced over 95,000 tons of coke. The Mammoth mines produced over 154,000 tons of coal most
of which was '



TOWN OF MAMMOTH
HAER No. PA-289
(Page 3)

used in the Moore’s Mammoth coke works. Both the mines and coke works were served by the Sewickley
Branch of the Pennsylvania Railroad which ran from Youngwood east to Mammoth.

In August 1889, the H. C. Frick Coke Company purchased the Mammoth property from Moore. Frick operated
the mines for a little over a year before a horrific explesion caused by the igniting of fire-damp killed 116
miners, State mining inspectors declared that the Frick Coke Company was not at fault in the disaster, claiming
that the mine had heen adequately ventilated, but that a sudden concentration of gas in one part of the slope
mine sparked the explosion. One inspector testified that while a number of miners appeared to have been killed
by the force the explosion, "a great majority of the bodies showed clearly that they died from the effects of
after-damp.”

In the wake of the county’s worst mining disaster, the Frick Coke Company, led by General Manager Thomas
Lynch, urged its miners to exercise greater vigilance in the detection of methane gas. (The HAER Inventory
tearn has not had time to research the miners’ response to the Mammoth mine explosion. An examination of the
testimony of miners who survived the disaster at Mammoth would undoubtedly reveal a response different to
that of the company concerning attitudes about safety at the Mammoth mine.) Despite the explosion, however,
the company repaired part of the underground works and reopened the slope mine about one year later.

The coke works at the shaft mine (called Mammoth No. 1) was the larger of the two coking operations; by the
1910s it had 311 bechive ovens. The coke works associated with the slope mine (called Mammoth No. 2} had
199 ovens. Just as the coal and coke operation was expanding so was the town of Mammoth. By 1910 over
1,000 persons lived in Mammoth. The H. C, Frick Coke Company operated the Mammoth mine and coke
works through the 1920s. By 1926 the company operated 174 coke ovens at Mammoth, producing ahout
107,000 tons of coke. The Mammoth mine produced over 181,000 tons of coal, and hoth the mine and coke
works employed 350 men and boys. Frick closed the Mammoth mine and coke works in 1927 and soon after
sold the company-owned houses. Frick leased the coke ovens in the 1930s to John Dent and Gus Kelly of
Greensburg. The ovens near the former shaft mine were operated until about 1946. M & A Suggerman
subsequently took over the coal property and in recent years some coal bas been reclaimed from the boney pile
near the site of the shaft mine,
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